
 
 

COUNCIL ON GRADUATE STUDIES 
Meeting Agenda 

November 14, 2023 
 

1. Minutes 

a. Approval of the 103123 meeting minutes 

2. Communication 

a. College of Liberal Arts & Sciences Curriculum Committee October 18, 2023 minutes 
b. College of Health & Human Services Curriculum Committee November 9, 2023 minutes 
c. SB-49 Compliance regarding Public Act 102-0998  release of transcripts 
d. EA-CHHS-24-10 CDS 5450 Offer online delivery mode of course 

 
3. Items to be Added to the Agenda  

a. 24-18 Revision to Graduate School Policy: Loss of Graduate Degree or Certificate Candidacy  
b. 24-19 PLS 5980 Graduate Internship (Course Revision) 
c. 24-20 PLS 5183 Race and Politics in the United States (New Course) 
d. 24-21 Revision to the MA in Political Science (Add course, change completion options, change a 

course title, update catalog listing) 
e. 24-22 Revision to the MA in Political Science: Public Administration/Public Policy Option (Add 

course, change completion options, change a course title, update catalog listing) 

4. Items to be Acted Upon 
a. 24-15 Mitchell, Chris Associate Grad Faculty Nomination (thesis committee-CSA) 
b. 24-16 Webb, Amber Associate Grad Faculty Nomination (thesis committee-CSA) 
c. 24-17 Wehr, Nathan Associate Grad Faculty Nomination (thesis committee-CSA) 

5. Items Pending 

a. None 

6. Other 

a. Credit for Prior Learning (CPL) approval pathway clarification 

7. Committee Reports 
a. Graduate Student Advisory Council (GSAC) 
b. Booth Collaborative Advisory Committee 
c. Textbook Rental Advisory  

8. Dean’s Report 



Council on Graduate Studies 
Meeting Minutes October 31, 2023 
 

1 
 

Council on Graduate Studies Minutes October 31, 2023  
  
The October 31, 2023 hybrid meeting of the Council on Graduate Studies met in 3108 Blair Hall at 2:00 pm.  

Members Present:  Dr. Bonnie Laughlin-Schultz, Dr. Nikki Hillier, Dr. Nichole Hugo, Dr. Alexis Jones, Dr. Chris Laingen, 
Dr. Farhad Sadeh, Chavionne Thomas 
Members Absent:  None 
Staff Present:  Interim Dean Dr. Robert Chesnut, Dr. Angela Vietto, Dr. Kathryn Havercroft, Ms. Lana Beasley, 
Ms. Myra Taylor 
Guests Present:  None 

 
1. Minutes 

a. Approval of the 101723 meeting minutes. 
Hearing no corrections, minutes stand as written. 

2. Communication 

a. October 4, 2023 CLAS Curriculum Committee Meeting Minutes 

Motion to accept CLAS Curriculum Committee Meeting Minutes made by Dr. Nikki Hillier, seconded by Dr. Alexis 
Jones. Approved by acclamation.  

3. Items to be Added to the Agenda   
a. 24-15 Mitchell, Chris Associate Graduate Faculty Nomination (thesis committee-CSA) 
b. 24-16 Webb, Amber Associate Graduate Faculty Nomination (thesis committee-CSA) 
c. 24-17 Wehr, Nathan Associate Graduate Faculty Nomination (thesis committee-CSA) 

 
Motion to add all items to the November 14, 2023 agenda made by Dr. Chris Laingen, motion seconded by 
Dr. Farhad Sadeh. Motion passed by acclamation. 
 

4. Items to be Acted Upon:   

Motion to consider Items to be Acted Upon made by Dr. Farhad Sadeh, seconded by Dr. Alexis Jones: 

a. 24-04 ENG 5021 (New Course) Evaluating Student Writing 
 

Motion to approve 24-04 ENG 5021 made by Dr. Nikki Hillier, seconded by Dr. Farhad Sadeh. Motion 
approved by roll call voice vote. 
 

b. 24-05 ENG 5022 (New Course) Grammar and the Teaching of Writing 
 

Motion to approve 24-05 ENG 5022 made by Dr. Chris Laingen, seconded by Dr. Nikki Hillier. Motion 
approved by roll call voice vote. 
 

c. 24-06 MAT SPE PROGRAM PROPOSAL 
 

Motion to approve 24-06 MAT SPE PROGRAM PROPOSAL made by Dr. Alexis Jones, seconded by Dr. Farhad 
Sadeh. Motion approved by roll call voice vote. 
 



Council on Graduate Studies 
Meeting Minutes October 31, 2023 
 

2 
 

d. 24-07 MAT SPE 5000 (New Course)  Residency I in Special Education 
e. 24-08 MAT SPE 5001 (New Course) Residency II in Special Education 
f. 24-09 MAT SPE 5002 (New Course) Characteristics and Legal Issues in Special Education 
g. 24-10 MAT SPE 5003 (New Course) Families and Collaboration in Special Education 
h. 24-11 MAT SPE 5004 (New Course) Assessment and Methods for Teaching Students with ELN 
i. 24-12 MAT SPE 5005 (New Course) Strategies and Assessment ELN 
j. 24-13 MAT SPE 5006 (New Course) Class and Behavior Management in SPE 
k. 24-14 MAT SPE 5007 (New Course) Transition Planning for ILN 

Motion to approve items d-k (24-07 through 24-14) made by Dr. Alexis Jones, seconded by Dr. Chris Laingen. 
Motion approved by roll call voice vote. 
 

5. Items Pending:  None 

6. Other:  CGS Vice Chair Candidacy 
Chair, Dr. Bonnie Laughlin-Schultz encouraged members to consider fulfilling the role as CGS Vice Chair in spring 
semester 2024, as Dr. Hillier will be stepping down. 
 

7. Committee Reports 
a. Graduate Student Advisory Council (GSAC): Ms. Myra Taylor shared the GSAC Committee distributed 

over 160 “Boo Bags” to graduate students to celebrate Halloween, created blankets for One Stop 
Christmas at the conclusion of their recent meeting, and were planning a bowling/pizza night. 

b. Booth Collaborative Advisory Committee: (Dr. DeRuiter-Willems) Dr. DeRuiter-Willems provided the 
following updates from the BCAC October 11, 2023 meeting:   
FDIC Updates: 
There have been a lot of requests for ISTS assistance. They are excited and eager to get started on 
training and assistance for the new Adobe contract, instated last month. All IL public universities banded 
together to form a contract with Adobe, and all faculty, staff and students have access to the full 
Creative Cloud suite. Adobe wanted to house a training and development unit on each campus, and the 
FDIC is serving that capacity at EIU. Gillespie will attend a state-level meeting Friday and can share more 
in the FDIC newsletter at the end of the month.  
FDIC is beginning to schedule programming for spring.  Faculty Reading Group starts at the end of 
January, with a book on inclusive pedagogy/course design. 
 
Booth Library Updates:  
The library has hired a Marketing Associate, Anna Nelson (beginning at the end of October). Steve 
Brantley will be on sabbatical SP24. Brantley is the head of Research and Engagement Services, and also 
a subject specialist for 7 areas, so conversations will continue regarding how a small library faculty group 
can absorb those roles. The family hub is in the cue for construction. Check social media for upcoming 
activities and events. 

c. Textbook Rental Advisory:  No report 
 

8. Dean’s Report 
a. Interim Dean Chesnut shared the OISS office is interviewing for an office manager 
b. The first Graduate School Graduate Fair was deemed a success. Interim Dean Chesnut thanked everyone 

for their participation and for spreading the word about the event. Over 70 students attended. 
 

Motion to adjourn meeting made by Dr. Farhad Sadeh, seconded by Dr. Chris Laingen. Meeting adjourned 
at 2:38 p.m. 



College of Liberal Arts and Sciences Curriculum Committee 
October 18, 2023 (Synchronous - Zoom) ELECTRONIC MEETING 

 
Participating Members:  Chris Kahler, ART; Sanghoon Kang, BIO; Chigozirim Sodeke, SCJ-CMN; Linda 
Ghent, ECN; Chris Wixson, ENG; Chris Laingen, GEO; Aura Jirau Arroyo, HIS; Ensung Kim, SCJ-JOU; 
Andrew Parrish, MCS; Liza Meyers, MUS; Teresa Britton, PHI; Robert Strausbaugh, PHY; Jeff Ashley, PLS; 
Jerry Zhu, PSY; Nick Shaw, THA; Irene Jacobsen, WLC; Dayden Gardner, Student Member (Arts & 
Humanities); Interim Associate Dean Mike Cornebise, ex-officio; Interim Associate Dean Chris Mitchell, ex-
officio 
 
Members not Participating: Steven Pellizzeri, CHM; Caitlin Lynch, SOC; Taeveon Gaines, Student Member 
(Sciences); Angie Rhoads, recorder 
 
Guests: Melissa Caldwell, ENG; Angela Vietto, ENG; Don Holly, SOC 
 
Chair Parrish called the meeting to order at 3:00 pm. 
 

I. Minutes 
 
On the motion of Britton and the second of Strausbaugh, the CLASCC minutes of October 4, 2023 
(Synchronous electronic meeting), were approved. 

 
II. Executive Actions 

 
The following Executive Actions were approved: 

24.04E From SOC—  Prerequisite Change for SOC 4700 

III. Items Acted On 
 
24.07 BA in Sociology (Revised Program) 
 
Motion made (Ashley) and seconded (Wixson) to consider.  Don Holly presented the proposal and 
answered questions from the committee.  Following discussion, the proposal was approved as 
submitted.  (17-0) 
 
24.08 Teaching English as a Second or Foreign Language Minor (New Program) 
 
Motion made (Britton) and seconded (Jirau Arroyo) to consider.  Melissa Caldwell presented the 
proposal and answered questions from the committee.  Following discussion, the proposal was 
approved as submitted.  (17-0) 

 
IV. Other Business 

 
None. 
 

V. Adjournment 
 
On the motion of Sodeke and the second of Britton, the meeting was adjourned at 3:17 p.m. 

 



Minutes taken by Michael Cornebise and prepared by Chris Mitchell 
 
Approved by CLASCC: November 8, 2023 



COLLEGE OF HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES 
CURRICULUM COMMITTEE MINUTES 

November 9, 2023 
 
The November 9, 2023 meeting of the College of Health & Human Services Curriculum Committee 
began at 9:30 a.m.  The meeting was conducted in a hybrid format (in person at Room 1418, Klehm 
Hall, and via Zoom.) 
 
Members Present:                                                   

 In person Via Zoom 
Ms. Lynne Barcus, Communication Disorders & Sciences  X  
Dr. Richard Clapp, School of Nursing X  
Mr. Brandon Foster, Student Representative X  
Dr. Nikki Hillier, Public Health & Nutrition  X 
Dr. Andrew Kerins, Kinesiology, Sport & Recreation X  
Dr. Kathleen O’Rourke, Human Services  X 

 
Members Absent:  

CPT William Comstock, Military Science 
 
 Ex-Officio Members Present:  

Dr. Jill Bowers, College of Health & Human Services 
Ms. Janet Fopay, College of Health & Human Services 

 
Guests:  Dr. Julie Dietz, Public Health & Nutrition and Dr. Holly Farley, School of Nursing. 
 
The meeting was called to order by Dr. Kerins (Chair). 
 
I. Introduction of the Student Representative: 

Brandon Foster will serve as the committee’s student representative.  He is an undergraduate 
student majoring in Kinesiology, Sport, & Recreation: Teacher Licensure option. 
 

II. Approval of Minutes: 
1. Minutes of the October 12, 2023 meeting. 

Dr. Kerins moved and Dr. O’Rourke seconded the motion to approve the minutes.  The minutes 
of the October 12, 2023 meeting were approved as written by acclamation. 

 
III. Items Acted Upon: 

1. 23-18, Policy on Loss of Graduate Degree or Certificate Candidacy (Revised Policy). 
 Dr. Kerins presented the proposal and answered questions. Ms. Barcus moved and Dr. Clapp 

seconded the motion to approve the proposal.  The motion was approved by acclamation.  
The proposal was approved. 

 
2. 23-19, 23-19, NUR 3900 A, B, D, E, F: Clinical Immersion Practicum in Nursing (New Course). 
 Dr. Farley presented the proposal.  There were no questions. Dr. Clapp moved and Dr. 

O’Rourke seconded the motion to approve the proposal.  The motion was approved by 
acclamation.  The proposal was approved. 

 



2 
 

3. 23-20, NUR 4530: Faith-based Communities and Health and Healing (New Course). 
 Dr. Farley presented the proposal and answered questions. Dr. O’Rourke moved and Dr. Clapp 

seconded the motion to approve the proposal.  The motion was approved by acclamation.  
The proposal was approved. 
 

4. 23-21, BAAS in Emergency Management (New Degree Program). 
 Dr. Dietz presented the proposal and answered questions. Ms. Barcus moved and Dr. 

O’Rourke seconded the motion to approve the proposal.  The motion was approved by 
acclamation.  The proposal was approved. 

 
5. 23-22, BAAS in Health Practice (New Degree Program). 

Dr. Dietz presented the proposal and answered questions. Dr. Clapp moved and Ms. Barcus 
seconded the motion to approve the proposal.  The motion was approved by acclamation.  
The proposal was approved. 

 
6. 23-23, BS in Nutrition & Dietetics to BS Nutrition/Coordinated Graduate Program. 
 Dr. Dietz presented the proposal and answered questions. Dr. Clapp moved and Ms. Barcus 

seconded the motion to approve the proposal.  The motion was approved by acclamation.  
The proposal was approved. 

 
7. 23-24, MS in Nutrition & Dietetics (Revised Program). 

Dr. Dietz presented the proposal and answered questions. Dr. O’Rourke moved and Dr. Clapp 
seconded the motion to approve the proposal.  The motion was approved by acclamation.  
The proposal was approved. 

 
IV. Pending Items: 
 None. 

 
V. Informational: 

1. Link to the CHHS Curriculum Committee Website:  https://www.eiu.edu/chhs/curriculum.php   
2. Link to the CHHS Curriculum SharePoint site housing the committee’s agenda, minutes, 

proposals, executive requests, and other curriculum materials:  
https://pmaileiu.sharepoint.com/sites/chhsdean/CHHS%20Curriculum%20Management%20D
atabase/Forms/AllItems.aspx?viewid=aaa38e73%2D140d%2D4c03%2D899b%2D65d06c0974e
0  

 
Dr. Clapp moved and Ms. Barcus seconded the motion to adjourn the meeting. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 10:02 a.m. 
 
The next meeting will be held at 9:30 a.m. on November 30, 2023.  The meeting will be held in Room 
1418, Klehm Hall and electronically via Zoom.   
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Janet Fopay 

 
 

https://www.eiu.edu/chhs/curriculum.php
https://pmaileiu.sharepoint.com/sites/chhsdean/CHHS%20Curriculum%20Management%20Database/Forms/AllItems.aspx?viewid=aaa38e73%2D140d%2D4c03%2D899b%2D65d06c0974e0
https://pmaileiu.sharepoint.com/sites/chhsdean/CHHS%20Curriculum%20Management%20Database/Forms/AllItems.aspx?viewid=aaa38e73%2D140d%2D4c03%2D899b%2D65d06c0974e0
https://pmaileiu.sharepoint.com/sites/chhsdean/CHHS%20Curriculum%20Management%20Database/Forms/AllItems.aspx?viewid=aaa38e73%2D140d%2D4c03%2D899b%2D65d06c0974e0


3 
 

 
********************* 

Fall 2023 Meetings 
October 12 @ 9:30 a.m. (1418 Klehm Hall) 

November 9 @ 9:30 a.m. (1418 Klehm Hall) 
November 30 @ 9:30 a.m. (1418 Klehm Hall) 

 

********************* 
 
 

Submission deadlines for the Fall 2023 CHHS Curriculum Committee meetings: 
 

Submission Deadline (noon)  CHHSCC Meeting Dates 
October 3 for the October 12 meeting 
October 31 for the November 9 meeting 
November 21 for the November 30 meeting 

 
 
 



Memorandum 

 

To:   EIU Council on Graduate Studies 

From: Brad Bennington, Registrar 

Date: November 6, 2023 

Subject:  Catalog revisions for compliance with SB 49 

 
In 2022 the Illinois State Legislature passed Public Act 102-0998  which, under certain circumstances, 
requires universities to release transcripts to students with a financial hold and provides additional 
provisions for withdraw from the university.  In 2023 the Illinois State Legislature passed Public Act 103-
0054 which amends Public Act 102-0998 by expanding the options available to students to receive an 
official transcript regardless of hold status.  In addition, beginning 7/1/24, federal regulations will 
require any institution receiving federal financial aid to release a student’s transcript if the course 
credits were paid for with federal financial aid.  Finally, the President’s Council amended IGP 64 and IGP 
66 to comply with these regulations.  In response, I am proposing the following revisions to language in 
our graduate catalog.   
 
Edited copy (addition in italics) 
 
Transcripts 
http://www.eiu.edu/registra/transcript.php: This web site provides information on ordering transcripts. 
The Records Office will make a transcript of the academic record of a student when requested to do so. 
Unless specific instructions are given to the contrary, it is understood that the Records Office has 
permission of the student to send his/her transcript to employing and certifying agencies, such as 
schools, boards of education, businesses, and the state department of education, when such an agency 
requests a transcript. All requests for transcripts must be in writing, either by letter or on the request 
form supplied by the Records Office or at the above web site. The time required for preparation and 
mailing of transcripts varies; during enrollment and at the end of grading periods there may be a delay 
of several days. A fee is charged for each transcript issued. Transcripts will be issued only for students 
whose records are clear. * 

*EIU fully supports Public Act 102-0998  The Student Debt Assistance Act and the subsequent 
amendment, Public Act 103-0054, which includes provisions for releasing a transcript for students with a 
financial hold.     
 
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/publicacts/fulltext.asp?Name=102-0998. 
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/publicacts/fulltext.asp?Name=103-0054 

 

Clean copy 

Agenda Item # 
Effective Spring 2024 

https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/publicacts/fulltext.asp?Name=102-0998
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/publicacts/fulltext.asp?Name=103-0054
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/publicacts/fulltext.asp?Name=103-0054
https://www.insidehighered.com/news/government/student-aid-policy/2023/10/25/new-us-rules-ban-transcript-holds-bolster-oversight
https://www.eiu.edu/auditing/igp/64
https://www.eiu.edu/auditing/igp/66
https://www.eiu.edu/auditing/igp/66
http://www.eiu.edu/%7Eregistra/transcript.php
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/publicacts/fulltext.asp?Name=102-0998
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/publicacts/fulltext.asp?Name=102-0998
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/publicacts/fulltext.asp?Name=103-0054


Transcripts 
http://www.eiu.edu/registra/transcript.php: This web site provides information on ordering transcripts. 
The Records Office will make a transcript of the academic record of a student when requested to do so. 
Unless specific instructions are given to the contrary, it is understood that the Records Office has 
permission of the student to send his/her transcript to employing and certifying agencies, such as 
schools, boards of education, businesses, and the state department of education, when such an agency 
requests a transcript. All requests for transcripts must be in writing, either by letter or on the request 
form supplied by the Records Office or at the above web site. The time required for preparation and 
mailing of transcripts varies; during enrollment and at the end of grading periods there may be a delay 
of several days. A fee is charged for each transcript issued.  

EIU fully supports Public Act 102-0998  The Student Debt Assistance Act and the subsequent 
amendment, Public Act 103-0054, which includes provisions for releasing a transcript for students with a 
financial hold.     
 
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/publicacts/fulltext.asp?Name=102-0998 
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/publicacts/fulltext.asp?Name=103-0054 
 

 

http://www.eiu.edu/%7Eregistra/transcript.php
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/publicacts/fulltext.asp?Name=102-0998
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/publicacts/fulltext.asp?Name=102-0998
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/publicacts/fulltext.asp?Name=103-0054


OFFICE OF 
THE DEAN 

600 LINCOLN AVENUE | 1034 KLEHM 

HALL CHARLESTON, IL 61920 

217-581-6025 | EIU.EDU/CHHS 
 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO: Council on Graduate Studies 
     
FROM: Dr. John R. Storsved, Dean 
 
SUBJECT: Executive Action 
 
DATE: November 8, 2023 
 
EFFECTIVE DATE: Summer 2024 
 
REQUEST:  Add the online mode of delivery to CDS 5450 which will allow for two delivery 

mode options for that course: online and face-to-face. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EA-CHHS-24-10 111423 



 
Eastern Illinois University 

Department of Communication Disorder & Sciences 
Executive Action Request 

 
 
Date: 11.07.2023 
 
To:  Dr. John Storsved, Dean of the College of Health & Human Services 
 
From: Rebecca Throneburg, Chair 
 
Effective Date: Summer 2024 
 
Request: Revised mode of delivery options for CDS 5450 Graduate Seminar in CDS to include an 
online option as well as a face-to-face option. 
 
Rationale for the Request:  CDS 5450 Graduate Seminar in CDS is an approved course used as needed 
in the CDS graduate program. The course is currently approved as a face-to-face option only. Since 
the time of initial course proposal, we have developed at least one course topic that is of interest to 
individuals working full time or not on campus. We anticipate this course will be of interest to others 
outside of our specific CDS cohort and need to make an online option as well to meet the needs of 
these learners. 
 
Current Catalog Copy: 
(1-0-1) Study of contemporary problems, issues, trends, and developments in the field of 
communication disorders. Pre-requisites: Graduate degree-seeking status or permission of the 
department chairperson. An individual topic may be repeated once, but no more than four semester 
hours of credit may be earned between different seminar topics. Course will be assigned letter 
following course number by department to differentiate course topics A,B,D,or E. 
 
Prerequisites & Notes 
Admission to CDS graduate program or accelerated program or permission of chair 
 
Credits: 1 
 
Catalog Copy with Revisions: 
*No changes needed to the catalog wording. Making this course available as an online option (mode 
of delivery) is the only change. 
 



TO: College of Health and Human Services Curriculum Committee, Council on Graduate Studies   
FROM: Dr. Andrew Kerins, Graduate Coordinator, Kinesiology, Sport, and Recreation 
Dr. Nikki Hillier, Graduate Coordinator, Health Promotion 
DATE: October 24, 2023 
SUBJECT: Proposed Programmatic Revision 
DATE TO GO IN EFFECT: Spring 2024 
 

Rationale:  

The existing Graduate School policy allows for the option of disqualifying a candidate for degree 
candidacy if they earn a grade below a B in more than 9 semester hours of graduate credit.  In 
our experience, graduate students who earn three or more C’s, especially in their first 
semester, do not make sufficient progress to complete their degree.  Allowing such students to 
continue when we know degree completion is extremely unlikely does them a disservice.  
Therefore, we request a change in policy so graduate programs have the option to disqualify a 
graduate student with a grade below B in 9 or more semester hours of graduate credit. 

Existing language: 

Loss of Graduate Degree or Certificate Candidacy 
• GPA: If a degree or certificate candidate in academic warning fails to 

return the cumulative GPA to the required 3.00 level during the next term 
in which he/she is enrolled, degree and/or certificate candidacy may be 
lost and the student may be reclassified as a non-degree graduate student. 
It is the candidate’s responsibility to monitor the GPA. 

• Grades Below B: A degree or certificate candidate receiving more than 
nine semester hours of graduate credit with a grade below B may be 
disqualified from degree or certificate candidacy and may be reclassified 
as a non-degree graduate student upon recommendation of the program 
or the Graduate School.  

• Other Reasons: Academic programs may rescind degree or certificate 
candidacy for other reasons not specified in this catalog. It is the 
candidate’s responsibility to be in compliance with university and program 
policies. 

• Non-degree Requirements: Non-degree students must maintain a 
cumulative GPA of 2.50 or higher to continue to pursue graduate course 
work. It is the candidate’s responsibility to monitor the GPA. 

 

CGS AGENDA ITEM 24-18  111423 



Proposed language: 

Loss of Graduate Degree or Certificate Candidacy 
• GPA: If a degree or certificate candidate in academic warning fails to 

return the cumulative GPA to the required 3.00 level during the next term 
in which he/she is enrolled, degree and/or certificate candidacy may be 
lost and the student may be reclassified as a non-degree graduate student. 
It is the candidate’s responsibility to monitor the GPA. 

• Grades Below B: A degree or certificate candidate receiving more than 
nine or more semester hours of graduate credit with a grade below B may 
be disqualified from degree or certificate candidacy and may be 
reclassified as a non-degree graduate student upon recommendation of 
the program or the Graduate School.  

• Other Reasons: Academic programs may rescind degree or certificate 
candidacy for other reasons not specified in this catalog. It is the 
candidate’s responsibility to be in compliance with university and program 
policies. 

• Non-degree Requirements: Non-degree students must maintain a 
cumulative GPA of 2.50 or higher to continue to pursue graduate course 
work. It is the candidate’s responsibility to monitor the GPA. 

 

Additional Information: 

The current policy is discussed with KSR graduate students during their advising meetings, is 
included on their advising checklist, and is shared during a mandatory meeting of all KSR 
graduate students at the beginning of the fall semester.  If this new policy were adopted we 
would ensure the policy is similarly shared with future graduate students.  In addition, we are in 
the process of updating our website and would be sure to include this information with any 
updates. 

 

Date approved by the college curriculum committee:  11/9/2023 

Date approved by CGS: _____________ 



Eastern Illinois University 
New/Revised Course Proposal Format 

(Approved by CAA on 9/30/21 and CGS on 11/16/21, Effective SP 2022) 

✔ 

Banner/Catalog Information (Coversheet) 

1. New Course or Revision of Existing Course 

2. Course prefix and number: PLS 5980

3. Short title: Graduate Internship

4. Long title: Graduate Internship

5. Hours per week: Class ARR Lab ARR Credit 1-6

6. Terms: Fall

7. Initial term: Fall

Spring 

Spring 

Summer On demand 

Summer Year: 2024 

8. Catalog course description:

Practical experience in an organization to allow students to apply and develop, outside the traditional
classroom, the skills learned in their graduate education. Internships must be approved by the graduate
internship coordinator.

9. Course attributes:

General education component: NA

Cultural diversity Honors Writing centered Writing intensive 

Writing active Department Capstone as Senior Seminar 

10. Instructional delivery
Type of Course:

Lecture Lab Lecture/lab combined Independent study/research 

✔ Internship Performance Practicum/clinical Other, specify: 

Mode(s) of Delivery: 

✔ Face to Face Online Synchronous ✔Online Asynchronous Study Abroad 

Hybrid, specify approximate amount of on-line and face-to-face instruction 

11. Course(s) to be deleted from the catalog once this course is approved:

NA

✔ 

✔ 

CGS AGENDA ITEM 24-19



Eastern Illinois University 
New/Revised Course Proposal Format 

(Approved by CAA on 9/30/21 and CGS on 11/16/21, Effective SP 2022) 

 

✔ 

12. Equivalent course(s): NA 

a. Are students allowed to take equivalent course(s) for credit? Yes No 
 

13. Prerequisite(s): 
At least 9 hours of graduate level courses in the Political Science MA. For students in the internship completion 
option, at least 24 hours of graduate level courses in the Political Science MA. 

a. Can prerequisite be taken concurrently? ✔ Yes No 

b. Minimum grade required for the prerequisite course(s)? 3.0 gpa 

c. Use Banner coding to enforce prerequisite course(s)? Yes No 
 

d. Who may waive prerequisite(s)? 
 

No one ✔ Chair 
 

Instructor 
 

Advisor 
 

Other (specify) 

 

14. Co-requisite(s): 
NA 

 
15. Enrollment restrictions 

 
a. Degrees, colleges, majors, levels, classes which may take the course: 

Students enrolled in the MA in Political Science or the MA in Political Science with the Public 
Administration and Public Policy option. 
b. Degrees, colleges, majors, levels, classes which may not take the course: 

 

16. Repeat status: May not be repeated May be repeated once with credit 

17. Enter the limit, if any, on hours which may be applied to a major or minor: 6 
 

18. Grading methods: 
 

Standard ✔ CR/NC 
 

Audit 
 

ABC/NC 

 

19. Special grading provisions: 
 

Grade for course will not count in a student’s grade point average. 
 

Grade for course will not count in hours toward graduation. 
 

Grade for course will be removed from GPA if student already has credit for or is registered in: 
 

Credit hours for course will be removed from student’s hours toward graduation if student already 
has credit for or is registered in: 

✔ 

X 



Eastern Illinois University 
New/Revised Course Proposal Format 

(Approved by CAA on 9/30/21 and CGS on 11/16/21, Effective SP 2022) 

 

✔ 

20. Additional costs to students: 
Supplemental Materials or Software: 

 
Course Fee No Yes, Explain if yes: 

 
21. Community college transfer: 

 
A community college course may be judged equivalent. 

A community college may not be judged equivalent. 

Note: Upper division credit (3000+) will not be granted for a community college course, even if the 
content is judged to be equivalent. 

Rationale, Justifications, and Assurances (Part I) 
 
1. Course is required for the major(s) of 

Course is required for the minor(s) of 

Course is required for the certificate program(s) of 
✔Course is used as an elective in the MA in Political Science, as an elective or a completion pathway for the degree. 

2. Rationale for proposal : 
This revisions permits us to provide an internship completion option to students enrolled in the MA 
program, and better reflects current internship procedures and opportunities for students. 

 
3. Justifications for (answer N/A if not applicable) 

Similarity to other courses: 

NA 
 

Prerequisites: 
 

Students need to complete some graduate coursework in able to benefit from the internship experience. 
For students pursuing typical internships, 9 hours of graduate credit is reasonable to allow them to make 
connections between their internship experience and their coursework. For students in the internship 
completion option, 24 hours is a more appropriate point at which to begin their internships. 

 
Co-requisites: 

NA 
 

Enrollment restrictions: 

This course is specifically for students in the MA in Political Science or the MA in Political Science 
with the Public Administration and Public Policy option. 

 

Writing active, intensive, centered: 

NA 

✔ 



Eastern Illinois University 
New/Revised Course Proposal Format 

(Approved by CAA on 9/30/21 and CGS on 11/16/21, Effective SP 2022) 

 

 
 

Capstone as Senior Seminar: 

NA 
4. General education assurances (answer N/A if not applicable) 

General education component: 

NA 
 

Curriculum: 

NA 
 

Instruction: 

NA 
 

Assessment: 

NA 
 
5. Online/Hybrid delivery justification & assurances (answer N/A if not applicable) 

Online or hybrid delivery justification: 
Internship academic requirements are submitted typically via Panthermail for students in both the 
face-to-face or online options. Students can obtain internships in a wide range of offices; this option 
is appropriate for online MA students as well as face-to-face students. 
Instruction: 
The internship coordinator will communicate weekly via email, Zoom, or other communications, 
promoting student reflection, connections, and analysis. All faculty supervising internships have 
completed OCDI training. 
Integrity: 
The internship coordinator will communicate with the internship supervisor prior to registration 
to gain their approval. The coordinator may also check in with the supervisor as needed to 
follow up on the student's progress in the internship. The supervisor will also formally evaluate 
the student. Weekly communications and student writing assignments may be scanned by 
Turnitin for integrity. 

Interaction: 

This is an individualized learning environment--interaction will primarily be between the internship 
coordinator and the student, and between the internship environment and the student. 

 
  



Eastern Illinois University 
New/Revised Course Proposal Format 

(Approved by CAA on 9/30/21 and CGS on 11/16/21, Effective SP 2022) 

 

Model Syllabus (Part II) 

Please include the following information: 

1. Course number and title: PLS 5980/Graduate Internship 

2. Catalog description:  
Practical experience in an organization to allow students to apply and develop, outside the traditional 
classroom, the skills learned in their graduate education. Internships must be approved by the 
graduate internship coordinator. 
 
3. Learning objectives: 

 
a. Students will analyze and apply concepts, models and theories learned in their graduate coursework to 

their internship experience. (G1, G2) 
b. Students will write effectively in both weekly analytic updates and in their final papers. (G3) 
c. Students will demonstrate ethical and professional responsibility in their internship experience. (G5) 
d. Students will develop their applied professional skills in the internship setting. (G4) 
e. Internship Option students will demonstrate effective oral communication skills in presenting their 

internship experience. (G3) 
 
4. Course materials: 

Course materials will vary depending on the internship and student experience. Students will draw 
from materials from their graduate coursework, as well as from guidance from the internship 
coordinator. 

5. Weekly outline of content: 
Weeks 1-15: Graduate interns will complete assignments from their supervisors, communicate with  the 
internship coordinator,  and work on their final papers. 
 
Week 16: Graduate interns will turn in their final paper to the internship coordinator. Students in the 
internship completion option will make a presentation on their internship  to faculty and other graduate 
students. 
 
6. Assignments and evaluation, including weights for final course grade: 

Regular   Internship 
Internship  Completion 

  Option 
Weekly analytic logs     30%   20% 
Supervisor evaluation     30%   20% 
Final paper      40%   50% 
Internship completion option oral presentation    10% 
Total       100%   100% 
 
7. Grading scale: 

 
CR: 80-100% 
NC: 0-79% 
 
 



Eastern Illinois University 
New/Revised Course Proposal Format 

(Approved by CAA on 9/30/21 and CGS on 11/16/21, Effective SP 2022) 

 

Date approved by the department or school: 10/27/23 
Date approved by the college curriculum committee: 11/8/2023 
Date approved by the Honors Council (if this is an honors course): 
Date approved by CAA: CGS: 
Date approved by General Education Committee: 



Eastern Illinois University 
New/Revised Course Proposal Format

(Approved by CAA on 9/30/21 and CGS on 11/16/21) 

Banner/Catalog Information (Coversheet) 

1. _X__New Course or _____Revision of Existing Course

2. Course prefix and number: ____PLS 5183________________________________________

3. Short title: __Race and Politics______________________________________________________

4. Long title: __Race and Politics in the United States_____________________________________

5. Hours per week: __3_ Class      __0_ Lab      __3_ Credit

6. Terms: ___ Fall     ___ Spring     ___ Summer     __x_ On demand

7. Initial term: ___ Fall     __x_ Spring     ___ Summer     Year: _2023_____

8. Catalog course description: This course examines political participation and behavior among racial
minorities in the United States.

9. Course attributes:

General education component: _______NA__________________________________________ ___

Cultural diversity ___ Honors  ___ Writing centered     ___ Writing intensive  ___Writing active

10. Instructional delivery

Type of Course:

_x__ Lecture     ___ Lab     ___ Lecture/lab combined     ___ Independent study/research

___ Internship     ___ Performance     ___ Practicum/clinical  ___ Other, specify: ________________

Mode(s) of Delivery:

_x__ Face to Face      __x_ Online   __X___ Online Asynchronous  ___ Study Abroad

___ Hybrid, specify approximate amount of on-line and face-to-face

instruction__________________

11. Course(s) to be deleted from the catalog once this course is approved.

12. Equivalent course(s): ____NA____________________________________________________

a. Are students allowed to take equivalent course(s) for credit?   ___ Yes     ___ No

13. Prerequisite(s): ____none_________________________________________________________

a. Can prerequisite be taken concurrently? ___ Yes     ___ No

b. Minimum grade required for the prerequisite course(s)?  ___

c. Use Banner coding to enforce prerequisite course(s)?   ___ Yes     ___ No

d. Who may waive prerequisite(s)?

CGS AGENDA ITEM 24-20



___ No one     ___ Chair     ___ Instructor     ___ Advisor     ___ Other (specify) 

14. Co-requisite(s): ___none__________________________________________________________

15. Enrollment restrictions

a. Degrees, colleges, majors, levels, classes which may take the course: Graduate students 
enrolled in the MA in Political Science or the MA in Political Science with the Option in Public 
Administration and Public Policy may enroll. Other students may enroll with the instructor’s 
approval.

b. Degrees, colleges, majors, levels, classes which may not take the course:  Students who are 
not enrolled in the MA in Political Science or the MA in Political Science with the Option in 
Public Administration and Public Policy may not enroll.

16. Repeat status: _x__ May not be repeated     ___ May be repeated once with credit

17. Enter the limit, if any, on hours which may be applied to a major or minor: _3__

18. Grading methods:   x___ Standard     ___ CR/NC     __ Audit     ___ ABC/NC

19. Special grading provisions: NA

___ Grade for course will not count in a student’s grade point average.

___ Grade for course will not count in hours toward graduation.

___ Grade for course will be removed from GPA if student already has credit for or is registered in: 

________________________________________________________________

___ Credit hours for course will be removed from student’s hours toward graduation if student 

already has credit for or is registered in: ____________________________________

20. Additional costs to students:

Supplemental Materials or Software_______None______________________________

Course Fee _x__No ___Yes, Explain if yes________________________________

21. Community college transfer:

___ A community college course may be judged equivalent.

__x_ A community college may not be judged equivalent.

Note: Upper division credit (3000+) will not be granted for a community college course, even if the 

content is judged to be equivalent.



Rationale, Justifications, and Assurances (Part I) 

1. ___Course is required for the major(s) of ____________________

___Course is required for the minor(s) of ____________________

___Course is required for the certificate program(s) of ______________

__x_ Course is used as an elective: The course will be a PLS elective in both Political

Science MA options.

2. Rationale for proposal: One of fastest growing areas of study in political science is the area

of race and politics. According to many scholars working in area, race may be the single

most important factor that guides how Americans vote on election day. Race also plays a role

in public opinion and public policy at every level of government. This course will introduce

students to some of the most important scholarly research in the field of race and politics.

3. Justifications for (answer N/A if not applicable)

Similarity to other courses: Other departments’ graduate programs offer classes addressing

race, but this is the only course on that topic in the MA program in Political Science.

Prerequisites: NA

Co-requisites: NA

Enrollment restrictions: NA

Writing active, intensive, centered: NA

4. General education assurances (answer N/A if not applicable)

General education component: NA

Curriculum: NA 

Instruction: NA 

Assessment: NA 

5. Online/Hybrid delivery justification & assurances (answer N/A if not applicable)

Online or hybrid delivery justification: Our MA in Political Science with the option in Public

Administration and Public Policy is all online. This course must be online for students to

complete the program.

6. Instruction: The course will be delivered primarily via the LMS at EIU (currently D2L),

although email and other online technologies may be used occasionally. The primary

difference between the online course and the face-to-face course will be the conduit for

discussion, with a discussion board instead of a classroom. The faculty and students can

facilitate a rich discussion in either learning environment. The technology will be used to

support student achievement by allowing them to interact with one another and the instructor



at times which are convenient for them. All online instructors must complete OCDi training 

or the equivalent before teaching the course. 

Integrity: The integrity of student work will be assured through repeated writing assignments. 

Given that students often have signature writing styles or voices, having someone else submit 

a single assignment will be evident to the instructor. In addition, all assignments are checked 

through on-line mechanisms for plagiarism. 

7. Interaction: Instructor-student and student-student interaction will be promoted through a

variety of means, including (but not limited to) the LMS discussion board, email, feedback

on individual assignments, peer review, and online chats. Faculty are also available to meet

students via phone conversation or on campus for a face-to-face meeting.

Model Syllabus (Part II)  

Please include the following information: 

1. Course number and title: PLS 5183/Race and Politics in the United States
2. Catalog description: This course examines political participation and behavior among racial

minorities in the United States.
3. Learning objectives.

a. Identify, interpret, critique and apply relevant scholarly sources, information, and data
about race and politics in the United States. (G1/content knowledge, G2/critical
thinking)

b. Understand, analyze, synthesize, and apply Political Science methods and models
used to study race and politics in the United States. (G1/content knowledge,
G2/critical thinking, G4/advanced research)

c. Identify and evaluate the major issues and actors that play a role in shaping race and
politics in the United States. (G1/content knowledge, G2/critical thinking,
G4/advanced research)

d. Present ideas, research, and analysis using effective critical thinking and
communication skills. (G1/content knowledge, G2/critical thinking,
G3/communication, G4/advanced research)

4. Course materials.
Sample journal article readings include:

a. Journal of Race Ethnicity and Politics - Journal
b. The Journal of Race and Policy – Journal
c. Journal of Politics - Journal
d. American Political Science Review – Journal
e. Journal of Politics - Journal

5. Weekly outline of content.
Week 1: Introduction to Race in the American Political Process 
Week 2: Competitions and Coalitions 
Week 3: Media and Public Opinion 
Week 4: Political Participation and Attitudes  
Week 5: Voting Rights 
Week 6: Ideology 
Week 7: Representation  
Week 8: Race in the Age of Obama 
Week 9: Race and Public Policy 



Week 10: Immigration 
Week 11: Criminal Justice 
Week 12: Protest Politics and Social Movements  
Week 13: Cleavages in Public Opinion on Social Issues 
Week 14: Cleavages in Public Opinion on Economic Issues  
Week 15: The Future of Race and Politics in the United States 
Week 16/Finals: Final Project Presentations 

6. Assignments and evaluation, including weights for final course grade.
a. Writing assignments, 30%: Students will have 6 short assignments to complete, based

on readings and class materials.
b. Class participation, 30%: Students will engage in the classroom and/or online

discussion forums and participate in the collaborative reading exercises.
c. Research paper, 30%: Students will write a research paper focusing on some aspect of

race and politics in the United States. Students will turn in a proposal and draft before
the final paper is due.

d. Presentation, 10%: Students will present the findings of their research paper in person
or via Zoom to the rest of the class and answer questions about the contents of the
project.

7. Grading scale.
A 90-100% B 80-89% C 70-79% D 60-69% F less than 60% 

Date approved by the department or school:  Oct 18, 2023 
Date approved by the college curriculum committee:  Nov 8, 2023 
Date approved by the Honors Council (if this is an honors course):  
Date approved by CAA:          CGS:   



Request for Revision to the MA in Political Science 

Rationale: The revisions update the MA in Political Science to account for a course addition, a 
change to program completion options, a course title change, and course catalog listing update. 

Effective Data: Fall 2024 
 
Current Catalog 

Program Mission: The Master of Arts in Political Science program provides a flexible curriculum for 
students interested in American government, comparative politics, and international relations. Students 
will receive training in the advanced analytical, methodological, and theoretical approaches used in 
political science. The curriculum prepares students for work in public affairs, including employment in all 
levels of government, legal careers, campaigns, lobbying, private sector government relations, and higher 
education. The program also prepares students for Ph.D. or legal studies. Internships related to 
government, politics and the legal system are available. 

Admission Requirements: To be eligible for degree candidacy, applicants must meet all of the 
requirements for admission to the Graduate School (see “Admission to Graduate Degree and Certificate 
Programs”). All applicants must submit a statement of personal goals and two letters of recommendation 
from faculty or professionals familiar with the applicant’s academic training and potential for success in 
graduate school. 

Degree Audit: The graduate plan of study is the EIU Degree Audit, which is generated automatically at the 
time of degree or certificate candidacy. Modifications of the standard EIU Degree Audit are submitted by 
the graduate coordinator to the certification officer in the Graduate School at the time modifications are 
approved. The Degree Audit serves as an unofficial summary of requirements for the program. Degree 
and certificate candidates are advised to review the comprehensive summary of the Degree Audit process 
specified on the “Requirements for All Degree and Certificate Candidates” section of the Graduate 
Catalog. Individual programs may require candidates to submit plans of study in addition to the Degree 
Audit, candidates should consult with the program coordinator. 

Degree Requirements 
Degree requirements include those outlined for the master’s degree by the Graduate School 
(see “Requirements for the Master’s Degree”). Additional requirements include a total of 33-36 
semester hours, including research methods, a program completion option, thesis or capstone 
project, and required courses, and electives. Students completing the Thesis must complete 27 
hours in addition to the 6 hour Thesis. Students completing the Capstone Project or Internship 
Option must complete 30 hours in addition to the a 3 hour Capstone Project or Internship. 
Students completing the Portfolio Option must complete 36 hours. 

CGS AGENDA ITEM 24-21

https://catalog.eiu.edu/content.php?catoid=43&navoid=2101#admi_to_grad_degr_and_cert_prog
https://catalog.eiu.edu/content.php?catoid=43&navoid=2101#admi_to_grad_degr_and_cert_prog
https://catalog.eiu.edu/content.php?catoid=43&navoid=2100#requ_for_all_degr_and_cert_cand
https://catalog.eiu.edu/content.php?catoid=43&navoid=2100#requ_for_the_mast_degr


Required Courses 

Required courses. Total Credits 6-9 

 PLS 5053 - Research Methods in Political Science Credits: 3 
  
 And one of the following program completion options 
 PLS 5950 - Thesis. Credits: 3 to 6 
 OR 
 PLS 5940 - Political Science Capstone Project Credits: 3 

OR 
PLS 5980 – Graduate Internship Credits: 3 
Students in the Internship Option must earn at least 24 graduate credit hours in the MA in Political 
Science before enrolling in their internship. 
OR 
Portfolio Option: Two additional courses from the 5000-level in Political Science Credits: 6 
Students in the Portfolio Option must complete a professional portfolio comprised of a resume, a 
professional statement, one oral presentation recording, and three documents from coursework and/or 
professional development. Students will complete the portfolio no later than their final semester of study. 
The Certificate of Comprehensive Knowledge will not be issued until the portfolio is complete.  
 
Proseminars 

Complete two of the following. Total Credits 6 

 PLS 5023 - Proseminar in International Politics. Credits: 3 
 PLS 5373 - Proseminar on American Politics Credits: 3 
 PLS 5023 - Proseminar in International Politics. Credits: 3 
 PLS 5433 - Proseminar in Comparative Politics. Credits: 3 

 
Political Science Electives 

Choose two courses from the following list. Total Credits 6 

 PLS 4763 - Environmental Politics and Policy Credits: 3 
 PLS 4774 - American Constitutional Law. Credits: 3 
 PLS 4783 - Health Politics and Policy Credits: 3 
 PLS 4823 - Comparative Public Policy Credits: 3 
 PLS 4853 - The Supreme Court Credits: 3 

PLS 4783 - Health Politics and Policy Credits: 3 
PLS 4853 - The Supreme Court Credits: 3 
PLS 4903 - Classic Political Theory. Credits: 3 

 PLS 4913 - Contemporary Political Theory. Credits: 3 
 PLS 4923 - African American Political Thought Credits: 3 
 PLS 4943 - American Political Thought Credits: 3 
 PLS 5033 - Comparative Institutional Analysis. Credits: 3 

https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print


 PLS 5073 - Seminar in Political Behavior. Credits: 3 
 PLS 5153 - Cities and Urban Policy in the U.S. Federal System Credits: 3 
 PLS 5163 - State Governments and Policy in the U.S. Federal System Credits: 3 
 PLS 5173 - Congress and the Presidency Credits: 3 
 PLS 5183 – Race and Politics in the United States Credits: 3 

PLS 5033 – Comparative Institutional Analysis Credits: 3 
PLS 5533 - Seminar in Political Modernization. Credits: 3 
PLS 4903 - Classic Political Theory. Credits: 3 

 PLS 4913 - Contemporary Political Theory. Credits: 3 
 PLS 4923 - African American Political Thought Credits: 3 
 PLS 4943 - American Political Thought Credits: 3 
 PLS 5153 - Cities and Urban Policy in the U.S. Federal System Credits: 3 
 PLS 5163 - State Governments and Policy in the U.S. Federal System Credits: 3 
 PLS 4823 - Comparative Public Policy Credits: 3 

PLS 5900 - Special Topics in Political Science, Public Administration and Public Policy Credits: 1-3 
 
Public Administration and Public Policy Electives 

Choose two courses from the following list. Total Credits 6 

 PLS 4763 - Environmental Politics and Policy Credits: 3 
 PLS 4783 - Health Politics and Policy Credits: 3 
 PLS 4793 - Civic and Nonprofit Leadership Credits: 3 
 PLS 4823 - Comparative Public Policy Credits: 3 
 PLS 4873 - Human Resource Management in Public and Nonprofit Organizations Credits: 3 
 PLS 4893 - Budgeting in Government and Nonprofit Organizations Credits: 3 
 PLS 5153 - Cities and Urban Policy in the U.S. Federal System Credits: 3 
 PLS 5163 - State Governments and Policy in the U.S. Federal System Credits: 3 
 PLS 5200 - Public Administration Ethics Credits: 3 
 PLS 5543 - Proseminar in Public Administration Credits: 3 
 PLS 5843 - Proseminar in Public Policy Research and Analysis Credits: 3 
 PLS 5900 - Special Topics in Political Science, Public Administration and Public Policy Credits: 1-3 
 PLS 4763, 4783, 4823; 5153; and 5163 may satisfy either elective category, but will not double-count. PLS 

5900 will count in the elective category appropriate to course content, but will not double count in both 
categories. 
 
Additional Coursework 

Students must take additional 6-13 hours of graduate-level courses from the all of the electives listed 
above, or the courses below. 

Students completing a Thesis may count no more than 3 hours from the following courses, and students 
completing the Capstone Project may count no more than 6 hours from the following courses. 

 PLS 5980 – Administrative Graduate Internship. Credits: 1 to 6 
 PLS 5990 - Independent Study. Credits: 1 to 6 

https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print


 PLS 5997 - Study Abroad. Credits: 3 to 6 
 
Graduate Assistantships 
Information on graduate assistantships may be obtained by contacting the Coordinator of Graduate 
Studies or Chair, Department of Political Science, 2135 Coleman Hall, EIU. 
 
Accelerated Graduate Program 

Admission to the accelerated MA in Political Science requires that a student have completed a minimum 
of 60 hours of undergraduate course credit and have a minimum undergraduate cumulative GPA of 3.25. 
In addition, applicants must have completed a minimum of 9 hours of Political Science (PLS) courses, 
including at least 6 hours at the 3000 level. 

To apply for the accelerated MA in Political Science, applicants meeting the above requirements must 
submit two letters of reference and a professional goals statement to the Graduate Coordinator and must 
also complete the Graduate School’s Accelerated Program Application. 
 
Shared Coursework 

Students may select up to three of the following courses: 

 PLS 4763 - Environmental Politics and Policy Credits: 3 
 PLS 4774 - American Constitutional Law. Credits: 3 
 PLS 4783 - Health Politics and Policy Credits: 3 
 PLS 4793 - Civic and Nonprofit Leadership Credits: 3 
 PLS 4823 - Comparative Public Policy Credits: 3 
 PLS 4853 - The Supreme Court Credits: 3 
 PLS 4873 - Human Resource Management in Public and Nonprofit Organizations Credits: 3 
 PLS 4893 - Budgeting in Government and Nonprofit Organizations Credits: 3 
 PLS 4903 - Classic Political Theory. Credits: 3 
 PLS 4913 - Contemporary Political Theory. Credits: 3 
 PLS 4923 - African American Political Thought Credits: 3 
 PLS 4943 - American Political Thought Credits: 3 
 PLS 5023 - Proseminar in International Politics. Credits: 3 
 PLS 5033 - Comparative Institutional Analysis. Credits: 3 
 PLS 5073 - Seminar in Political Behavior. Credits: 3 
 PLS 5153 - Cities and Urban Policy in the U.S. Federal System Credits: 3 
 PLS 5163 - State Governments and Policy in the U.S. Federal System Credits: 3 
 PLS 5173 - Congress and the Presidency Credits: 3 
 PLS 5183 – Race and Politics in the United States Credits: 3 
 PLS 5200 - Public Administration Ethics Credits: 3 
 PLS 5373 - Proseminar on American Politics Credits: 3 
 PLS 5433 - Proseminar in Comparative Politics. Credits: 3 
 PLS 5533 - Seminar in Political Modernization. Credits: 3 
 PLS 5543 - Proseminar in Public Administration Credits: 3 

https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
http://www.eiu.edu/graduate/machform/view.php?id=13159
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print


 PLS 5843 - Proseminar in Public Policy Research and Analysis Credits: 3 
 PLS 5900 - Special Topics in Political Science, Public Administration and Public Policy Credits: 1-3 

 

Clean Copy 

Program Mission: The Master of Arts in Political Science program provides a flexible curriculum for 
students interested in American government, comparative politics, and international relations. Students 
will receive training in the advanced analytical, methodological, and theoretical approaches used in 
political science. The curriculum prepares students for work in public affairs, including employment in all 
levels of government, legal careers, campaigns, lobbying, private sector government relations, and higher 
education. The program also prepares students for Ph.D. or legal studies. Internships related to 
government, politics and the legal system are available. 
 
Admission Requirements: To be eligible for degree candidacy, applicants must meet all of the 
requirements for admission to the Graduate School (see “Admission to Graduate Degree and Certificate 
Programs”). All applicants must submit a statement of personal goals and two letters of recommendation 
from faculty or professionals familiar with the applicant’s academic training and potential for success in 
graduate school. 
 
Degree Audit: The graduate plan of study is the EIU Degree Audit, which is generated automatically at the 
time of degree or certificate candidacy. Modifications of the standard EIU Degree Audit are submitted by 
the graduate coordinator to the certification officer in the Graduate School at the time modifications are 
approved. The Degree Audit serves as an unofficial summary of requirements for the program. Degree 
and certificate candidates are advised to review the comprehensive summary of the Degree Audit process 
specified on the “Requirements for All Degree and Certificate Candidates” section of the Graduate 
Catalog. Individual programs may require candidates to submit plans of study in addition to the Degree 
Audit, candidates should consult with the program coordinator. 
  

https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/content.php?catoid=43&navoid=2101#admi_to_grad_degr_and_cert_prog
https://catalog.eiu.edu/content.php?catoid=43&navoid=2101#admi_to_grad_degr_and_cert_prog
https://catalog.eiu.edu/content.php?catoid=43&navoid=2100#requ_for_all_degr_and_cert_cand


Degree Requirements 
Degree requirements include those outlined for the master’s degree by the Graduate School (see 
“Requirements for the Master’s Degree”). Additional requirements include a total of 33-36 semester 
hours, including research methods, a program completion option, required courses, and electives. 
Students completing the Thesis must complete 27 hours in addition to the 6 hour Thesis. Students 
completing the Capstone Project or Internship Option must complete 30 hours in addition to a 3 
hour Capstone Project or Internship. Students completing the Portfolio Option must complete 36 
hours. 
 
Required Courses 

Required courses. Total Credits 6-9 

 PLS 5053 - Research Methods in Political Science Credits: 3 
  
 And one of the following program completion options 
 PLS 5950 - Thesis. Credits: 3 to 6 
 OR 
 PLS 5940 - Political Science Capstone Project Credits: 3 

OR 
PLS 5980 – Graduate Internship Credits: 3 
Students in the Internship Option must earn at least 24 graduate credit hours in the MA in Political 
Science before enrolling in their internship. 
OR 
Portfolio Option: Two additional courses from the 5000-level in Political Science Credits: 6 
Students in the Portfolio Option must complete a professional portfolio comprised of a resume, a 
professional statement, one oral presentation recording, and three documents from coursework 
and/or professional development. Students will complete the portfolio no later than their final 
semester of study. The Certificate of Comprehensive Knowledge will not be issued until the portfolio 
is complete.  
 
Proseminars 

Complete two of the following. Total Credits 6 

 PLS 5023 - Proseminar in International Politics. Credits: 3 
 PLS 5373 - Proseminar on American Politics Credits: 3 
 PLS 5433 - Proseminar in Comparative Politics. Credits: 3 

 
Political Science Electives 

Choose two courses from the following list. Total Credits 6 

 PLS 4763 - Environmental Politics and Policy Credits: 3 
 PLS 4774 - American Constitutional Law. Credits: 3 
 PLS 4783 - Health Politics and Policy Credits: 3 

https://catalog.eiu.edu/content.php?catoid=43&navoid=2100#requ_for_the_mast_degr
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print


 PLS 4823 - Comparative Public Policy Credits: 3 
 PLS 4853 - The Supreme Court Credits: 3 
 PLS 4903 - Classic Political Theory. Credits: 3 
 PLS 4913 - Contemporary Political Theory. Credits: 3 
 PLS 4923 - African American Political Thought Credits: 3 
 PLS 4943 - American Political Thought Credits: 3 
 PLS 5033 - Comparative Institutional Analysis. Credits: 3 
 PLS 5073 - Seminar in Political Behavior. Credits: 3 
 PLS 5153 - Cities and Urban Policy in the U.S. Federal System Credits: 3 
 PLS 5163 - State Governments and Policy in the U.S. Federal System Credits: 3 
 PLS 5173 - Congress and the Presidency Credits: 3 
 PLS 5183 – Race and Politics in the United States Credits: 3 
 PLS 5533 - Seminar in Political Modernization. Credits: 3 
 PLS 5900 - Special Topics in Political Science, Public Administration and Public Policy Credits: 1-3 

 
Public Administration and Public Policy Electives 

Choose two courses from the following list. Total Credits 6 

 PLS 4763 - Environmental Politics and Policy Credits: 3 
 PLS 4783 - Health Politics and Policy Credits: 3 
 PLS 4793 - Civic and Nonprofit Leadership Credits: 3 
 PLS 4823 - Comparative Public Policy Credits: 3 
 PLS 4873 - Human Resource Management in Public and Nonprofit Organizations Credits: 3 
 PLS 4893 - Budgeting in Government and Nonprofit Organizations Credits: 3 
 PLS 5153 - Cities and Urban Policy in the U.S. Federal System Credits: 3 
 PLS 5163 - State Governments and Policy in the U.S. Federal System Credits: 3 
 PLS 5200 - Public Administration Ethics Credits: 3 
 PLS 5543 - Proseminar in Public Administration Credits: 3 
 PLS 5843 - Proseminar in Public Policy Research and Analysis Credits: 3 
 PLS 5900 - Special Topics in Political Science, Public Administration and Public Policy Credits: 1-3 
 PLS 4763, 4783, 4823; 5153; and 5163 may satisfy either elective category, but will not double-

count. PLS 5900 will count in the elective category appropriate to course content, but will not double 
count in both categories. 
 
Additional Coursework 

Students must take additional 6-13 hours of graduate-level courses from the all of the electives 
listed above, or the courses below. 

Students completing a Thesis may count no more than 3 hours from the following courses, and 
students completing the Capstone Project may count no more than 6 hours from the following 
courses. 

 PLS 5980 - Graduate Internship. Credits: 1 to 6 
 PLS 5990 - Independent Study. Credits: 1 to 6 

https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print


 PLS 5997 - Study Abroad. Credits: 3 to 6 
 
Graduate Assistantships 
Information on graduate assistantships may be obtained by contacting the Coordinator of Graduate 
Studies or Chair, Department of Political Science, 2135 Coleman Hall, EIU. 
 
Accelerated Graduate Program 

Admission to the accelerated MA in Political Science requires that a student have completed a 
minimum of 60 hours of undergraduate course credit and have a minimum undergraduate 
cumulative GPA of 3.25. In addition, applicants must have completed a minimum of 9 hours of 
Political Science (PLS) courses, including at least 6 hours at the 3000 level. 

To apply for the accelerated MA in Political Science, applicants meeting the above requirements 
must submit two letters of reference and a professional goals statement to the Graduate 
Coordinator and must also complete the Graduate School’s Accelerated Program Application. 
 
Shared Coursework 

Students may select up to three of the following courses: 

 PLS 4763 - Environmental Politics and Policy Credits: 3 
 PLS 4774 - American Constitutional Law. Credits: 3 
 PLS 4783 - Health Politics and Policy Credits: 3 
 PLS 4793 - Civic and Nonprofit Leadership Credits: 3 
 PLS 4823 - Comparative Public Policy Credits: 3 
 PLS 4853 - The Supreme Court Credits: 3 
 PLS 4873 - Human Resource Management in Public and Nonprofit Organizations Credits: 3 
 PLS 4893 - Budgeting in Government and Nonprofit Organizations Credits: 3 
 PLS 4903 - Classic Political Theory. Credits: 3 
 PLS 4913 - Contemporary Political Theory. Credits: 3 
 PLS 4923 - African American Political Thought Credits: 3 
 PLS 4943 - American Political Thought Credits: 3 
 PLS 5023 - Proseminar in International Politics. Credits: 3 
 PLS 5033 - Comparative Institutional Analysis. Credits: 3 
 PLS 5073 - Seminar in Political Behavior. Credits: 3 
 PLS 5153 - Cities and Urban Policy in the U.S. Federal System Credits: 3 
 PLS 5163 - State Governments and Policy in the U.S. Federal System Credits: 3 
 PLS 5173 - Congress and the Presidency Credits: 3 
 PLS 5183 – Race and Politics in the United States Credits: 3 
 PLS 5200 - Public Administration Ethics Credits: 3 
 PLS 5373 - Proseminar on American Politics Credits: 3 
 PLS 5433 - Proseminar in Comparative Politics. Credits: 3 
 PLS 5533 - Seminar in Political Modernization. Credits: 3 
 PLS 5543 - Proseminar in Public Administration Credits: 3 

https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
http://www.eiu.edu/graduate/machform/view.php?id=13159
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print


 PLS 5843 - Proseminar in Public Policy Research and Analysis Credits: 3 
 PLS 5900 - Special Topics in Political Science, Public Administration and Public Policy Credits: 1-3 

 
Approvals 
Department of Political Science: October 18, 2023 
CLAS Curriculum Committee: November 8, 2023 
Council on Graduate Studies:   
 

  

https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7074&returnto=2194&print


Request for Revision to the MA in Political Science with the Option in Public 
Administration/Public Policy 

Rationale: The revisions below update the MA in Political Science with the Public 
Administration and Public Policy option to include a course addition, a change to program 
completion options, a title change, and course catalog listing update. 

Effective Data: Fall 2024 

Current Catalog Copy 

Program Mission: The Master of Arts in Political Science with the Option in Public 
Administration/Public Policy program provides an online curriculum for students interested in 
public administration, nonprofits, and public policy. Students will receive training in the 
advanced analytical, methodological, and theoretical approaches used in political science. The 
curriculum prepares students for work in public administration, including employment in all 
levels of government, non-profit management, lobbying, private sector government relations, 
and public policy analysis. Internships related to public administration, public policy and 
nonprofits are available. 

Admission Requirements: To be eligible for degree candidacy, applicants must meet all of the 
requirements for admission to the Graduate School (see “Admission to Graduate Degree and 
Certificate Programs”). All applicants must submit a statement of personal goals and two letters 
of recommendation from faculty or professionals familiar with the applicant’s academic training 
and potential for success in graduate school. 

Degree Audit: The graduate plan of study is the EIU Degree Audit, which is generated 
automatically at the time of degree or certificate candidacy. Modifications of the standard EIU 
Degree Audit are submitted by the graduate coordinator to the certification officer in the 
Graduate School at the time modifications are approved. The Degree Audit serves as an 
unofficial summary of requirements for the program. Degree and certificate candidates are 
advised to review the comprehensive summary of the Degree Audit process specified on the 
“Requirements for All Degree and Certificate Candidates” section of the Graduate Catalog. 
Individual programs may require candidates to submit plans of study in addition to the Degree 
Audit, candidates should consult with the program coordinator. 

Degree Requirements 

Degree Requirements: Degree requirements include those outlined for the master’s degree by 
the Graduate School (see “Requirements for the Master’s Degree”). Additional requirements 
include a total of 33-36 32 semester hours, including research methods, a capstone project 
program completion option, required courses, and electives. 

CGS AGENDA ITEM 24-22

https://catalog.eiu.edu/content.php?catoid=43&navoid=2101#admi_to_grad_degr_and_cert_prog
https://catalog.eiu.edu/content.php?catoid=43&navoid=2101#admi_to_grad_degr_and_cert_prog
https://catalog.eiu.edu/content.php?catoid=43&navoid=2100#requ_for_all_degr_and_cert_cand
https://catalog.eiu.edu/content.php?catoid=43&navoid=2100#requ_for_the_mast_degr


• PLS 5054 - Research Methods in Public Administration and Public Policy Credits: 3

AND one of the following program completion options:
• PLS 5940 - Political Science Capstone Project Credits: 3
• OR
• PLS 5980 – Graduate Internship Credits: 3

Students in the Internship Option must earn at least 24 graduate credit hours in the MA in 
Political Science before enrolling in their internship.

• OR
Portfolio Option: Two Additional Courses from the 5000-level in Political Science  Credits: 6
Students in the Portfolio Option must must complete a professional portfolio comprised of a 
resume, a professional statement, one oral presentation recording, and three documents 
from coursework and/or professional development. Students will complete the portfolio no 
later than their final semester of study. The Certificate of Comprehensive Knowledge will 
not be issued until the portfolio is complete. 

Proseminars

Complete both of the following courses. Total Credits 6 

• PLS 5543 - Proseminar in Public Administration Credits: 3
• PLS 5843 - Proseminar in Public Policy Research and Analysis Credits: 3
• PLS 5543 - Proseminar in Public Administration Credits: 3

Public Administration and Public Policy Electives

Choose two of the following. Total Credits 6 

• PLS 4763 - Environmental Politics and Policy Credits: 3
• PLS 4783 - Health Politics and Policy Credits: 3
• PLS 4793 - Civic and Nonprofit Leadership Credits: 3
• PLS 4823 - Comparative Public Policy Credits: 3
• PLS 4873 - Human Resource Management in Public and Nonprofit Organizations Credits: 3
• PLS 4893 - Budgeting in Government and Nonprofit Organizations Credits: 3
• PLS 4823 - Comparative Public Policy Credits: 3
• PLS 5153 - Cities and Urban Policy in the U.S. Federal System Credits: 3
• PLS 5163 - State Governments and Policy in the U.S. Federal System Credits: 3
• PLS 5200 - Public Administration Ethics Credits: 3
• PLS 5900 - Special Topics in Political Science, Public Administration and Public Policy Credits: 1-3

Political Science Electives

Choose two of the following. Total Credits 6 

• PLS 4763 - Environmental Politics and Policy Credits: 3

https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194


• PLS 4774 - American Constitutional Law. Credits: 3
• PLS 4783 - Health Politics and Policy Credits: 3
• PLS 4774 - American Constitutional Law. Credits: 3
• PLS 4823 - Comparative Public Policy Credits: 3
• PLS 4853 - The Supreme Court Credits: 3
• PLS 4903 - Classic Political Theory. Credits: 3
• PLS 4913 - Contemporary Political Theory. Credits: 3
• PLS 4923 - African American Political Thought Credits: 3
• PLS 4943 - American Political Thought Credits: 3
• PLS 5023 - Proseminar in International Politics. Credits: 3
• PLS 5033 - Comparative Institutional Analysis. Credits: 3
• PLS 5073 - Seminar in Political Behavior. Credits: 3
• PLS 5153 - Cities and Urban Policy in the U.S. Federal System Credits: 3
• PLS 5163 - State Governments and Policy in the U.S. Federal System Credits: 3
• PLS 5173 - Congress and the Presidency Credits: 3
• PLS 5183 – Race and Politics in the United States Credits: 3
• PLS 5033 - Comparative Institutional Analysis. Credits: 3
• PLS 5373 - Proseminar on American Politics Credits: 3
• PLS 5433 - Proseminar in Comparative Politics. Credits: 3
• PLS 5533 - Seminar in Political Modernization. Credits: 3
• PLS 4903 - Classic Political Theory. Credits: 3
• PLS 4913 - Contemporary Political Theory. Credits: 3
• PLS 4923 - African American Political Thought Credits: 3
• PLS 4943 - American Political Thought Credits: 3
• PLS 5373 - Proseminar on American Politics Credits: 3
• PLS 5023 - Proseminar in International Politics. Credits: 3
• PLS 5433 - Proseminar in Comparative Politics. Credits: 3
• PLS 4823 - Comparative Public Policy Credits: 3
• PLS 5153 - Cities and Urban Policy in the U.S. Federal System Credits: 3
• PLS 5163 - State Governments and Policy in the U.S. Federal System Credits: 3

PLS 5900 - Special Topics in Political Science, Public Administration and Public Policy Credits: 1-3
• PLS 4763, 4783, 4823; 5153; and 5163 may satisfy either elective category, but will not double-

count. PLS 5900 will count in the elective category appropriate to course content, but will not
double-count in both categories.

Additional Coursework

Students must take an additional 8-12 hours of graduate-level courses from the electives lists 
above or the courses listed below. 

Students may count no more than 6 hours from the following courses. 

Total Credits 8-12 

• PLS 5980 –Administrative Graduate Internship. Credits: 1 to 6

https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194


• PLS 5990 - Independent Study. Credits: 1 to 6

Graduate Assistantships

Information on graduate assistantships may be obtained by contacting the Coordinator of 
Graduate Studies or Chair, Department of Political Science, 2135 Coleman Hall, EIU. 

Clean Copy 

Program Mission: The Master of Arts in Political Science with the Option in Public 
Administration/Public Policy program provides an online curriculum for students interested in 
public administration, nonprofits, and public policy. Students will receive training in the 
advanced analytical, methodological, and theoretical approaches used in political science. The 
curriculum prepares students for work in public administration, including employment in all 
levels of government, non-profit management, lobbying, private sector government relations, 
and public policy analysis. Internships related to public administration, public policy and 
nonprofits are available. 

Admission Requirements: To be eligible for degree candidacy, applicants must meet all of the 
requirements for admission to the Graduate School (see “Admission to Graduate Degree and 
Certificate Programs”). All applicants must submit a statement of personal goals and two letters 
of recommendation from faculty or professionals familiar with the applicant’s academic training 
and potential for success in graduate school. 

Degree Audit: The graduate plan of study is the EIU Degree Audit, which is generated 
automatically at the time of degree or certificate candidacy. Modifications of the standard EIU 
Degree Audit are submitted by the graduate coordinator to the certification officer in the 
Graduate School at the time modifications are approved. The Degree Audit serves as an 
unofficial summary of requirements for the program. Degree and certificate candidates are 
advised to review the comprehensive summary of the Degree Audit process specified on the 
“Requirements for All Degree and Certificate Candidates” section of the Graduate Catalog. 
Individual programs may require candidates to submit plans of study in addition to the Degree 
Audit, candidates should consult with the program coordinator. 

Degree Requirements 

Degree Requirements: Degree requirements include those outlined for the master’s degree by 
the Graduate School (see “Requirements for the Master’s Degree”). Additional requirements 
include a total of 33-36 semester hours, including research methods, a program completion 
option, required courses, and electives. 

• PLS 5054 - Research Methods in Public Administration and Public Policy Credits: 3

https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/content.php?catoid=43&navoid=2101#admi_to_grad_degr_and_cert_prog
https://catalog.eiu.edu/content.php?catoid=43&navoid=2101#admi_to_grad_degr_and_cert_prog
https://catalog.eiu.edu/content.php?catoid=43&navoid=2100#requ_for_all_degr_and_cert_cand
https://catalog.eiu.edu/content.php?catoid=43&navoid=2100#requ_for_the_mast_degr
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194


AND one of the following program completion options: 
• PLS 5940 - Political Science Capstone Project Credits: 3
• OR
• PLS 5980 – Graduate Internship Credits: 3
• OR
• Two Additional Courses from the 5000-level in Political Science  Credits: 6

If students take the additional course option, they must complete a professional portfolio
comprised of a resume, a professional statement, one oral presentation recording, and three
documents from coursework and/or professional development. Students will complete the
portfolio no later than their final semester of study. The Certificate of Comprehensive
Knowledge will not be issued until the portfolio is complete.

Proseminars

Complete both of the following courses. Total Credits 6 

• PLS 5543 - Proseminar in Public Administration Credits: 3
• PLS 5843 - Proseminar in Public Policy Research and Analysis Credits: 3
• 

Public Administration and Public Policy Electives 

Choose two of the following. Total Credits 6 

• PLS 4763 - Environmental Politics and Policy Credits: 3
• PLS 4783 - Health Politics and Policy Credits: 3
• PLS 4793 - Civic and Nonprofit Leadership Credits: 3
• PLS 4823 - Comparative Public Policy Credits: 3
• PLS 4873 - Human Resource Management in Public and Nonprofit Organizations Credits: 3
• PLS 4893 - Budgeting in Government and Nonprofit Organizations Credits: 3
• PLS 5153 - Cities and Urban Policy in the U.S. Federal System Credits: 3
• PLS 5163 - State Governments and Policy in the U.S. Federal System Credits: 3
• PLS 5200 - Public Administration Ethics Credits: 3
• PLS 5900 - Special Topics in Political Science, Public Administration and Public Policy Credits: 1-3

Political Science Electives

Choose two of the following. Total Credits 6 

• PLS 4763 - Environmental Politics and Policy Credits: 3
• PLS 4774 - American Constitutional Law. Credits: 3
• PLS 4783 - Health Politics and Policy Credits: 3
• PLS 4823 - Comparative Public Policy Credits: 3

https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194


• PLS 4853 - The Supreme Court Credits: 3
• PLS 4903 - Classic Political Theory. Credits: 3
• PLS 4913 - Contemporary Political Theory. Credits: 3
• PLS 4923 - African American Political Thought Credits: 3
• PLS 4943 - American Political Thought Credits: 3
• PLS 5023 - Proseminar in International Politics. Credits: 3
• PLS 5033 - Comparative Institutional Analysis. Credits: 3
• PLS 5073 - Seminar in Political Behavior. Credits: 3
• PLS 5153 - Cities and Urban Policy in the U.S. Federal System Credits: 3
• PLS 5163 - State Governments and Policy in the U.S. Federal System Credits: 3
• PLS 5173 - Congress and the Presidency Credits: 3
• PLS 5183 – Race and Politics in the United States Credits: 3
• PLS 5373 - Proseminar on American Politics Credits: 3
• PLS 5433 - Proseminar in Comparative Politics. Credits: 3
• PLS 5533 - Seminar in Political Modernization. Credits: 3
• PLS 5900 - Special Topics in Political Science, Public Administration and Public Policy Credits: 1-3
• PLS 4763, 4783, 4823; 5153; and 5163 may satisfy either elective category, but will not double-

count. PLS 5900 will count in the elective category appropriate to course content, but will not
double-count in both categories.

Additional Coursework 

Students must take an additional 8-12 hours of graduate-level courses from the electives lists 
above or the courses listed below. 

Students may count no more than 6 hours from the following courses. 

Total Credits 8-12 

• PLS 5980 – Graduate Internship. Credits: 1 to 6
• PLS 5990 - Independent Study. Credits: 1 to 6

Graduate Assistantships

Information on graduate assistantships may be obtained by contacting the Coordinator of 
Graduate Studies or Chair, Department of Political Science, 2135 Coleman Hall, EIU. 

Approvals 

Department of Political Science: Oct 18, 2023 

CLAS Curriculum Committee: Nov 8, 2023 

Council on Graduate Studies: 

https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194
https://catalog.eiu.edu/preview_program.php?catoid=45&poid=7090&returnto=2194





























































